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THE GUYANDOTTE. NAVIGATION COMPANY

March 16, 1849, the Guyandotte Navigation Company was incor-
porated by ac%o of %he General Assembly of Virginia. The avowed
object of the company was for "improving the navigation of the
Guyandotte. river, by Slackwater from its mouth, in the county of
Cabell, to Logan courthouse, and as far above.that point as may
be deemed practicable, either by slackwater navigation, or any
other mode of improvement."

Books were to be openéd for subscriptions, at Guyandotte,
Barboursville, Chapmansville, and Logan. Some of the most
prominent men in all these places were named to take the suberip-

- tions.,

At Guyandotte, the subscriptions were to be under the direc-
tion of John W, Hite, Perceval S, Smith, Henry H, Miller, Nathaniel
S. Adams, Alfred M, Whitney, and James Emmons.

Those chosen at Barboursville were: William C, Miller, John
G. Miller, Iroire Lusher, John L, Keller, Sampson Saunders,
Solomon Thornbur, John Samuels, George F, Miller, and Robert Mc-
Kendree, or any one or more of them,

At Chapmansville we have the names of Edward Chapman,
Joshua Butcher, Elias Adkins, Henry Curly, Peter Dingess, Crispen
S. Stone, William Toney, John Fry, and Burwell S, Chapman, or any
one or more of them,

At Logan courthouse, these names are given: Dr. Hugh Bryan,
Anthony Lawson, Evermont Wyrd, William Stratton, Isagc S, Samuels,
James Lawson, Evan Ellis, John Dempsey, Joseph Dempsey, and
Ulysses Hinchman, or any one or more of them,

Subscriptions were to be taken for $75,000, at $50 per share.

The act provided that "as soon as four hundred shares shall
have been subscribed, the subsecribers, their executors, etc.
shall be incorporated in the name and style of "The Guyandotte
Navigation Company.*™

This was to be a joint stock company, in which the State
would subscribe three fifths of the stock and private capital
two fifths, the Board of Public Works being authorized to sub-
sceribe in proportion to the private subscriptions.

The company was authorized buy necessary lands, not to
exceed five acres at any one point. They could collect such



tolls as they might decide on, subject to the approval of the
Board of Public Works. .

The work was to be commenced within five years from the
passage of the act, and completed within ten years, or forfeit
all their rights.

The names of the incorporators are not known as they seem
never to have been reported. Evidently, they expected to raise
a considerable amount of subscriptions from local people, but
whether they did, so is not known. No list of stockholders has
been preserved until June 12, 1860, and not a single local name
is found on this l1list. They all seem to have been eastern
capitalists mostly from New York, and there were only a few of
them, They were: -

Edgar J, Barton $12,800
Henry L. Cotheal 12,800
A, Randolph Martin 12,800
Lyman Denison 12,800
Henry McFarlan 20,000

Total 71,200

" The states quota was $106,800 of which all was paid but
3300.

On November 3, 1849, the Guyandotte Land Company was formed
by Articles of Association, in which Peter Clark subscribed 8750

shares. Edgar J. Barton 1500 shares
Henry McFarlan 750 n
Edmund T. Bridge 750 "
Henry L. Cotheal 750 L
Lyman Denison : 500 n
Geo. M. Danforth 500 L

D. Randolph Martin was to be one of the directors. It will
be seen that several of the same names as those owning the prin-
cipal part of the private stock in the Guyandotte Navigation Co.,
are found in this list.

The avowed purpose of the Land Co., was "disposing of a
large tract of real estate situated near the Ohio, in the valleys
of the Guyandotte river, originally patented to General Samuel
Smith, State of Maryland, in 1796, and 1797.

This company purchased several hundred thousand acres of
land located on the waters of Mud river, Guyandotte river, Twelve
Pole Creek, in Cabell, Wayne, Logan and Boone counties, "said
lands orginally granted to Samuel Smith of Baltimore, in four
separate patents.
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It is perfectly clear that this company and the Guyandotte
Navigation Company were, to all practical purposes, one and the
same company. Eastern capital was now beginning to see the vast
potentialities of the Guyandotte Valley, and Guyandotte was
taking on an importance unequalled by many larger places.

These men saw the vast quantities of timber, coal, and other
products, and began to envislon better methods of getting them
to market than depending on rafting, flat boating, or other
crude means of transportation.

Although the act incorporating the Guyandotte Navigation
Company was passed in March 1849, it was more than a year before
the work was started. This being a Joint stock company in which
the State subscribed three fifths of the stock, it was proper
that it should have a proxy. Accordingly Charles L, Roffe was
appointed to this position, and he made the first report to the
Board of Public Works. This report was made September 11, 1850,
and stated that the private stockholders of New York appointed
Col. Cyrus Moore as Superintendent, and George McDaniel of Maine
as Engineer, They arrived in Guyandotte about the 20th of June
1850, and at once began operations.

The first lock and dam was located about opposite the present
location of the International Nickel Plant, and was not finished
at the time of Mr., Roffe's report, but was expected to be finished
by the 15th or 20th of November. -

While this lock and dam was in process of construction, the
one at Dysenberry's Mill, now known as Martha was being built.
Owing to the fact that this dam was giving way, it was deemed
advisable to make it all entirely new. Since nearly all the
materials were on the ground, it was expected to be finished
about the same time that the first one would be completed.

Two other locks and dams were under way--one at Salt Rock,
and the other at the 01d Falls, dout a mile or more above the
present town of West Hamlin, These proved insufficient and
others were later constructed at Barboursville just above the
mouth of Mud River and at the mouth of Smith Creek.

The Engineer and the Board thought it advisableto enlarge
the locks to 13 O feet in length and 26 feet in breadth, in order
to admit, the passage of small steam boats, which would answer
the wants of the community much better than "having to rely
alone on horse power or manual labor for the transportation of
merchandise up and down the riverj besides it will do away with
the necessity of constructing a tow-path from Guyandotte to

- Logan courthouse, which was estimated to cost $21 280." From



this, it can be seen that the company was considering using
the method then used on canals for transporting goods.

March 18, 1851, Peter Clark, President of the Guyandotte
Navigation Company, made a repor% to the Board of Public Works,
in which he pointed out some of the many difficulties "encoun-
tered by the company--the "difificulties in procuring mechanical
labor and reliable workmen: and the scarcity and high price of
provisions in that particular section" thus not only retarding
the work, but adding to the expense. .The summer of 1850 was a
very dry one and while it favored the work of construction, it
added to the difficulties and expense of getting cheap timber
and material from places up the river by water, and of course
they could hardly be brought overland as roads were well-nigh
impassible. Hence, puchases of timber and provisions had to be
made near the works where they could easily be hauled by ox
teams,

It was found necessary to expend large sums'fof "tools,
cooking utensils, camp furniture, teams, wagons, and pile drivers,
which will not again be incurred in the further prosecution of g
the work."

These difficulties were added to by objections made by Mr,
Gill "to the plan of constructing the works, adopted by the
directors." The delay resulted in an investigation by the
Board of Public Works, and undermined public confidence, caused
some of the workmen to leave and produced a kind of insubordi-
nation on the part of others who remained, and "weakened the
influence of the Superindendent and principal workmen over those
under their immediate charge.

One of the stockholders, Col. Cyrus Mocre, was made Super-
intendent. Certain parts of the works were intrusted to some
of the more experienced workmen at "two or thrce dollars per
day." The lock near the present Nickel Plant (No. 1) was on the
east side of the river.

A solid concrete foundation "about on a level with the
bottom of the channel of the Ohio. River at the mouth of the
Guyandotte. The shore pier was one hundred and eighty feet
long, and twenty-three feet, eight inches high. This, at the
time, was nearly finished and filled with stone. Other con-
struction details are give, but will probably not be of interest
to the average reader. Suffice to say that much three-inch
tongue and grooved lumber, and other heavy timbers were used in
the construction,

Locations for the dams were always made at points where at
least parts of the bottom, usuwally on one side of the river or
the other were of solid rock.
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The directors purchased of Col. John Everett about five
acres of land on the east side of the river, between the Guyandotte
turnpike and the river, including an acre on the east side of
the turnpike.

Lock and dam No. 2, was located at Barboursville just above
the mouth of Mud River. The lock here was on the west side of
the river. Stone for the piers was found to be plentiful on the
west side, but had to be blasted. This was used to load the
plers. The size of this as well as the other locks varied in
size.

Lock and dam No. 3 was located at Dusenberry's Dam, almost
under the present Guyandotte River bridge. It was more than
six miles above Lock No. 2, the lock was on the west side, and
a rock bottom extended entirely across, the river. The Dusen-
berry mills were on the east side of the river below the present
bridge; "and in order to secure effectively the dam, independent
of the bulkheads the mills, a strong pier, twenty-eight feet
long, and sixteen feet wide, has been built and raised above high
water, and coped with heavy oak plank." The company had pur-
chased two and a half acres of land on the west side of the
river, and planned to purchase two acres on the east side of Mr,
Dusenberry,

The Salt Rock dam was built next and was called No. 4. It
will be noted that the numbers were changes as new locks were
built. The one at Smith Creek was the last one built. The
Salt Rock dam was injured in a fresket which occurred in November,
1850. However, this did not prove serious and was soon repaired.
No one was blamed for neglect. The water had washed a channel
about twenty-five feet wide on the west side of the river.

The last dam, then No. 5, but later known as No., 6, was made
at the 01d Falls, sometimes called the "upper falls." Here a
rock bed extended entirely across the river, and there was a ten-
foot fall at this place. "This rock dipped slightly to the
east or left bank of the stream (ascending) and during a freshed,
some thirty or forty years ago, the river washed away the left
bank, "opening a new channel along the east side of said, leav-
ing the same in ordinary stages of water, entirely above the
surface of the river."

The works at the so-called upper falls were probably the
most difficult to build and the most elaborate of all. This
report gives the following description:

"it this site, the lock is placed in the present channel of
the stream on the east side.™
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"The piers at this place are of the same length with the
former, already described, and will be twenty-three feet high.,"

"The shore pier is upon the head, and about ten-feet high at
the foot, and loaded throughout with rock. From the head of this,
there extends a winged pier, at right angles, to the east shore,
ninety feet long, at the top, and driven into the bank, and well
secured by strong sheet piling. This wing pier is thirty-feet wide
at the bottom, and twenty-three feet at the top, and is raised
some forty feet high, and is above high water, so as effectually
to secure the bank from the action of the water. Great pains
have also been taken for the same by brushing and graveling the.
bank, on the east slde for a considerable distance above the
pier ®

"The stream pier is up to the required height at the head,
and about ten feet at the foot, and is well-loaded with stone.
From this pier, there is also extended at right angles, a wing
pler, about seventy-five feet, entirely across the present chan-
nel of the stream, and abutting agalnst the rock above described,
which formed the ancient bed of the river. This wing is twenty—
elght feet wide at the bottom, and twenty-three feet at the top."

"The lock at this place is wholly planked at the bottom, and
at the sides, to the height of about six feet."

"The dam extending from the west end of the wing pier,  above
mentioned, across the said rock, will be two hundred feet long,
and about six feet high and will be built at comparatively little
expense, considering its expense, and convenience of its construc-
tion over the said table rock."

"This is the upper dam in the course of construction by the
company, and it will render the $ream navigable for somewhat
more than half the distance contemplated in their charter. It
is the design of the directors to finish the work thus far during
the coming summer, and then take immediate measures for the
further extension of the works. For the locks except at No. 2,
the castings are all provided and paid for; and considering
the difficulties incident to the commencement of a work of this
character, which have been already alluded to, the directors
believe that this portion of the work will be more expensive
than the upper or remaining portion of the improvement."

From Mr., Clark's report, we learn further that the engineer
had been absent since October 1, 1850, because of an injury to
onc of his legs. No work was done durlng the winter of 1850, but
the superintendent kept a few men busy to protect the works
from injury. They were mainly employed in blasting rocks,
filling in the piers, and providing timber.



The Company looked forward to the vast amounts of "cannel
and bituminous coal in the valley of the Guyandotte, as well as
the rich iron ores of the same regions," the immense forests of
timber, and the prospects for wool-growing, and stock raising,
"and other profitable industrial pursuits."™ They also envisioned
great salt deposits., The State was encouraged to look forward
to increased revenues from the "enhancement of the real estate
of the country."

For some time after the Guyandotte Navigation Company was
organized, Charles L, Roffe represented the State as proxy.
No minutes are available for the first few years, but from the
reports, it appears that Peter Clark was the first President
of the Company. However, an December 31, 1851 C. L, Roffe made
a report as President. Col. Cyrus Moore continued as Superin-
tendent, and Capt. George McDaniels, after his accident in the
fall of 1850, returned from hishome in Maine, and took charge of
the works, about March 20, 1851. There were many rains in the
spring of this year, and the work was somewhat retarded, but
the hands were kept busy quarrying stones or providing other
materials. The Legislature on March 4%, 1851, increased the capi-
tal stock to $200,000., Up to this time, it had been §75,000.
This was the extent of the capital stock & long as the company
was in existence., In fact, the very last reports show that the
company never expended even this much. September 25, 1851, a
meeting of the stockholders was held in Guyandotte for the purpose
of increasing the capital stock to the above amount. It seems
that, in this, they were unsuccessful, for, on August 19th,
operations were suspended, and the superintendent and engineer
were discharged, as funds were short.

Some one who "knew the situation at the Falls, and the great
damage that must inevitably result to the works, if left in the
condition they were then in, insisted on having the lock finished
up and the gates hung."

Mr, Roffe was then authorized to do this work, upon his
own responsibility, the directory agreeing to "indemnify him,
from any loss, in theevent he finishes up the lock, by disposing
of any property of the company they may have control of as direc-
tors to pay the same." Mr. Roffe finished the work and paid of
and discharged the works November 1lth,

Mr. Roffe says that the Lock and dam at the mouth of Mud
River were begun in May.

Camps for 40 or 50 men were erected at this place, the stone
quarry partially opened and some stone prepared for loading the
piers and dam, Much timber plank etc, as well as castings for
the gates were on the ground but so far nothing had been done on
the lock and dam,



Lock No. 3, at Dusenberry Dam was practically finished by
August, 1, 1851, It was intetended to raise this dam three feet
in order to allow boats to pass."
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THE GUYANDOTTE NAVIGATION COMPANY

Mapeh 16, 1849, the (livandotte Navigation Company was ingoge
porated by aot of-%he.@enéral Agsembly gt Virginia, %The avowed
object of the company was for "improving the navigation of the
(uyandotte river, by Slackwater from its mouth, in the aounty of
Gaboll, to logan eourthonse, and ag far sbove that Joint as may
be deamed practicable, either by slackwater navigation, op any
other mode of improvement,® '

Books wero to be opened for subsariptions, at Guysndotte,
Barboursville, Chapnensville, and Logsn, S8ome of the most
iem&aent men in all these piaee& were nomed Yo take the suberip-
SO0 e '

At Guyandotte, the subserigﬁiona were to be under the dirage
tion of J W, Hi%e, Porceval 8, Snith, Henry H, Miller, Nathaniel
8, Adamsy Alfred M, Whitney, and James Emmong,

Those chogen at Barboursville were: William €, Miller, John
G, Miller, Ircive Lushey, John L, Keller, Sampson Saundops,
Solomon Thornbur, John Sanuels, &eorge F, Millew, and Robert Mo
Kendree, or any one or nore of them, o

At Cha sville we have the names of Edward Chapman,
Joshua Buteher, Elias Adkins, Henry Curly, Pater Dingess, Crispen
B, 8tone, wmim Teney, John Fey, and Burwell 8, Chapman, or any
one or more of them,

At logan courthouss, these names are given: Dp, Hugh Bryan,
Inthony Lawson, REvermont W,rd, Willfgam 8tratton, Is:ge 8, Samuels,
James Lawson, Bvan ¥Wilis, John Dempsey!’ Jogseph ﬁampsay, and

Ulysses Hinchman, or sny onhe or more or them
Bubscriptions were to be taken for §75,000, at $50 per share.
The act provided that "as gsoon as four hundred shares shall

have been subscyibed, the subsceriders, their exooutors, etc.

shall be incorporaited In the nane and gtyle of "The Guyandotte
Navigation Coupany,.®

This was to be a Joint stoek mggny, in which the State
would subseribe thrse fifths of the stock end private capital
two fifths, the Doard of Public Works being authorized to sub~
scribe in proportion toe the private subscriptions.

The eompany vas authorlized buy necessary lands, not to
exceed five acres at any one point, They could collect such



tolls a8 they night decide on, subject to tho spproval of the
Board of Public Works,

The work wes ¢o be commenced within five years from the
pass%ga of the acl, and completed wit tan years, or forfelf
all their rights, : -

The nemes of the incorporutors are not known as they sewum
nevey to have been yeported, Evidently ﬁhag eifected o ralge
& considerable amount of subscriptions fram oeal people, but
whethey they did, so 1s not known., No 1is% of stockholders hasg
bean preserved until June 12, 1860, and not a single local nane
s found on this list. They =11 gseom to have been eastern
capitalists mostly from New York, and there were only & few of
them, They were:

Edgay J, Bayton §12,800
floney L. Cotheal 12,800
4, Rendolph Martin 12,800
éyman gggéign 12,800
enry M an '
Total 5%1%83

 The states quots was $106,800 of which all was paid but

-§3300.

On November 3, 1849, the Guyandotte Lund Company vos formed
Articles of igsociation, in which Peter Clark subseribed 8750

ras., Edgur J, Barton 1500 shaves
' Henry MeoFaprlan 750 "
Bamand T, Bridge 50 "
Henry L, Cotheal 50 "
Iymen Denison Q0 ”
oy M. Danforth 500 v

D. Randolph Moptin weg to bo ong of the divestors, It «ill
be seen that soveral of the same names as those owning the prine
eipal part of the Erivate stocz In the Guysndotto Navigatlon Co.,
ere found in this llet.

The pvowad purpose of the Land Co., was "disposing of &
large tract of roul estute gituvated near the Ohio, in the valleys
of the Cuyandotte river, originolly patenfed te Jeneral Gamusl
Smith, Stute of Maryland, In 1796, and 1797,

Thig conpany purchagsed seversl hundyed thousand acres of
land located on the waters of Mud river, Guyandotte rivery Twalwe
Pole Creek, in Cabell, Wayne, Logan and Boone countics “gaid
lands orginally grented to Sarmuel Smith of Daltimore, in fouy
sepaprute patents,
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one at Pusenberry's Mill, now known as Martha was belng bul

i

It 18 perfeootly clear that thils company and the Guyandotte
Navigation Company weare, to all practieal purposes, one and the
game O s Bastern copital was now beginning to sce the vast

tentialities of the Guyandotte Valley, ond Guyandotte was
ing on an loportandce unequalled by many larger places,

These men guw the vast quantities of timher, coal, and other
gmdue.ts_ and began to envision be!ter methods of getting them
o market thon depending on rafting, flat boating, or other
arude meuns of transportation, ~

Although the agt mcorporatini the Guyandotte Navigation
Conpany was passed in Mapclh: 1849, 1t wus move than a year before
the work was started, This being a Joint stock company in which
the Btete subscribed thrce fifths of the stock, 1t waa proper
that 4t should have a 11-635'. Aceordinglz‘ G&mries Ly Boffe wasg
appointed to this position, &nd he made the first report to the
Board of Public Works, This roport was made September 11, 1850,
and statod that the private stoddhiolders of New York appointed
Col. Cyrus Moove 88 Suporintendenty and George MgDaniel of Maine
a8 Engineer, They arrived in &»;raﬁ@otta about the 20th of June
1650, and at once began operations,

The firet lock and dan was located about ?maita the present
lodation of the . International Nickel Mlant, and was not finished
at the time of }r. Roffe's roport, tut was skpeoted to be finighed
by the 15th ox 20%th of Novauher, ~

While this lock and dam w.8 in procoss of mmetionitme

L 2

Owing to the fact that this dan was glving way, it was deconmed
advisoble $0 make It all entirely new. Since nesrly all the
materials were on the gremd, it was expectod to bo finished
about the game time that the {irst one would bc completed,

Two other locis and dams wers under way--one at Salt Rock,
and the other «t Tho 01d Falls, dout a mile or more above the
presant town of West Hawlin, Thase proved insuificient and
others were later constructed »t Barboursville Just ahove the
mouth of Hud River end ¢t the mouth of Smith Crsek,

The Ingineer and the Board thought it advisablsete enlorge
the logks to 13.0 feet in length and 26 feot in breadth, in order
to admit, thd &assage of small stewn boats, which would -ngvey
the wonts of the community much better thin "having to roly
alone on horse powver or nmenuval labor for the transpertation of
merchandise up «nd down the riverj besldes it will do away with
the necessity of constructing a tow~path from Guysndotte to
ILogen courthouse, which wag estimated to cost §21 280." Fronm
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-provigions In thet particuler section” thus not

thig, it con be Secn that the company was considering using
the fiethod then uged on eansls fop t:anspowtinz Eﬁégga o

Mareh 18, 1851, Peter (lark, Prosident of the CGuyandotte

Navigatlon Conpuny, made a 1o to the B Cof Public Workse
in ia fntod !

ch he pointed out some of the nmany difficultlies %encoun=
tered by the conpanye-the fdifficultles in procuring mechanigal
labor and relisble worimen wund the scaveity and.gigh prieelgﬁs
¥y potapd
@ work, but adding to the expense. The suumey of 1850 wus a
vory dry one end while it fuvored the work of construction, it
added to the dlfficultles and expanse of getting cheap timbep
and materdal from places up the rved by water, and of course
they could hardly Lo brought overiand as roads wvere well-nigh
impassible. Henca, puchascs of Liuder and provisions had to be
. g neay the works vhare thoy could 6asily be hauled by ox
CERLT: ‘ "

I wos found necessury to expend luyge sums fop "tools,

cooking utensile, camp furnibure, teams, wagons, ahd pile drdvers,

which will not sgain be incurred in the further prosecution of
the work.,® .

These difficulties were added to by objeatione made by My,
Gili "o Yhs plan of canstructiainthe~%o:ka- adcgted by the
directora.” The delay resulted in an 1nvea§igat¢on by the
Board of Public Works, and undermined public confidence, caused
sore of the worknen to leave and produced a kind of insubordie
nation on the payt of others who remained, snd fyeskened the
influance of the Superindendent and principa; woykmen over thosge
under their irmcdizte charge,

One of the stociholders, Col. % Mo .ve, w.s made Supore
Intendent, Certain parts of the works were 1n€rustad to sonme
of the more czperienced worinen at "iwo or thrce dollars por
day.® The locii necr the progent Niekel Plant (No. 1) was on the
eas8t gide of tho river,

A solid conarote Loundation ®about on & level with the
botton of the channel of the Ohlo River ut ths mouth of the
Guyandotte., Ihe share picd was one hundred and elghty feot
long, and tventy~thr.e feet, eight inches high. This, st the
time, wis nearly finished and filled with stons. Other cone
gtruction dotuils are glve, but will probably not be of interest
to tho average reader. Suffice to suy that mmch thres~inch
tongue and grooved luwaibey, snd other hewvy timbers were uged in
the construction, '

Losations for the dems were always nade at points vhero at
least parts of the boltom, usually on one slds of tha river ox
the other were of solid rock.

I
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The directors purchasgsed of Col. John Iverett about five
acres of land on the eust glde of the river, betwuen the Guyandotte
turhyike and the yiver, ineluding an acre on the east glde of
the turnpike,. ’

Lock and dam No. 2, was located att Bavrdourgville Just above
the mouth of Mud River, The lock heve was on the west side of
the vivor., Stone for the plers wag found to be plentifud on the
woat side, but had to be blasted. This was uged to load the
p%a&s. The sige of this as well ss the othor locks Varisd in
sige.

Lock and dam No. 3 wag located at Dugenberryts Dam, slmost
under the present Guyasndotte River byridge, It was nove than
8ix milos above Lock No. 2, the look was on the wost gide. and
a rock bottom extanded entirely acyross, the river, The Dussne
beryy mills were on the eust glde of the xiver below the present
bridge; Yend in order bo secure effectively the dumy indepondent
of the bulkheads the mills, & strong pler, twonty-aight feet
long, and sixtoen feet wide, has boen built and raised cbove high
watery and coped with heavy oak plank.® ‘The compaay had pure
chaged two and a half acres of lznd on the wast gido of the
giVer end planned to purchase two acres on the cast side of Mr,

801DEYYY . '

The Salt Rock dem wes built next and was calioed No, . It

will bo noted that the numbers were changes w8 new locks were

built, The one at Snith Cpreck was the last one bullt, The

1t Roek dom was Injured in o fresket whieh occurred in Noveumber,
1850, However, this did not prove gerious and was soon ropaiyed.
No one was blamed for neglect. The waler had waghed a channel
about twenty~five feet wido on the west side of the river.

~ The last dan, then No. 9, but later known a8 No, &, was made
at -the 01d Palls, sometimes ealled the "upper falls.® Here o
roek bed extended entirely ceross the rivep, and therc was o ten-
foot fzll at tils place., M"This rock dipgcd slightly to the
ecst or left bank of the stream (zscending) and during & freshed,
some thirty or forty years ago, the river waghed away the left
bank, "opening & new channel alon% the enst side of szld, leuye
ing the scme In ordinary stages of wiuter, entirely above the
surface of th: rlver.®

The work&?at the so-called upper falls were probably the
most difficult to build and the most eloborate of all. This
report givea the following descyiption:

 Wag this gite, the lock 18 placed in the ant oha
the stream on the cast side." P prasent channel of
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"The §1ers at this glace are of the game length with the
former, already ddsoribed, snd will de twenty-three feet high,*

"The shore pler is upon the head, and about ten~fect high at
the foot, wnd loaded throughout with rock, IFrom the hecd of this,
there extends o H‘mgcd pler, at right wngles, to the eust shore
ninety foot long, ct the top, and driven into tho bank, and weld
gocured by strong sheet plling, This wing ples is thivty-feot vide
S006 Forky Tort Taghy iy 48 ohove high vases, o oo sffecbunily
gonle 1oXey few 31 X 8 above 1 water, 80 &8 eliec
to secure ths bunk f%om the action of the wuter, Great pains

. have also been taken for the same by brushing and gravel the

bank, on the esst side for a considersble distance chove the

pler,®

fThe atresn Eier is up to the requirsd height at the head,
and about ten feet at the foot, ond 18 welleloaded with stone.
Fpom this pler, therc is ulso extended, at right angles, a wing
plory about seventy~five feet, entively across the pregsent chane
nel of the stroum, and abuttin‘g %gams the roek above degcribed,
which formed the cnclent bed of the wiver. This wing is twentyw
eight feut wide at the bottomy and twenty.three fect at the top.®

. "The lock «t this pluce is ubolly plunked st the bottom, and
at tho sides, tc the helight of sbout six feet,®

“Mhe detn extending from the west end of the wing pler,.above
mentionsd, ccress the sald roci:, will be two bhundred feet leong
and ob b six foct high and vill be built =t compuratively 1itfle
expense, consldering its expense, and convenlence of its construce
tlon over the s=id tible rock."

tThis 18 the upper dam in the course of construction by the
coly s and it will render the $reom navigable for somewha
more half the distance contemplated in thelr charter. It
18 the design of the directors $o finish the worlk thus far during
tha coodng sumuer, and then tuke inmedlate meusures for the
further cxtension of the works. For the locks except at No, 2,
the costings are oll provided und pald for; and considering
the diffisulticsn Incident Yo the coumcncenont of ¢ sork of thias
character, wilch bove boen tlraeuady olluded to, the directors
believe that this portlon of tle work wlll be nor: expensive
than the upper or remplining portion of the Joproveriant,®

From v, Clavri's report, we learn Durther thelt the ~nglneor
had been abgent sinee October 1, 1650, becsuse of cn injury to
onc of his lega. No work was done during the winter of 1850, but
the superintendent kept a fevw men busy to protect the works
from injury. They were wmainly omployed in blasgting rocks,
£iiling in the piers, und providing timber,
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The Company looked forwvard to the vast amoumts of "cannel
und bituminous coal in the valley of the Guyandotte, o8 woll as
the rlch iron ores of the gune regiong," the lmmense forssis of
timber, =znd the prospects for woo mgrowing& end stock ralsing,
Tand ol:her profitable industriel purguits.” They @lso envisioned
groot 5ult deposits., The State was encouraged to look forward

0 Incresgsd revenues fronm the Yenhancemont of the real estute
of the country.®

For some time after the Guyandotte Navigotion Company was
organized, Charlceg L, Roffe represented the State as proxy.
No minutes are ayailable for the first. few yesrs, but from the
reporig, it appeure thot Petor Clark was the first President
¢f the Compary. However, ‘@n Decenber 31, 1891 €. L, Roffe nade
a report us Prosident, Col. Cyrus Moore continued as Superin-
tendent, «nd Capt. George leDanlels, after his accident in the
fall of 1850, returnecé from hishome In Maine, and tock charge of
the works, about Murel. 20, 1851, There were nany raing in the
spring of this yacr, and ihe worl was somewhet retordeod, tub
the honds were Lept busy currrying stones or providing other
natericls. The Leglslature on Moreh &, 1851, incressed the capie
t:1 stock to 4$200,000. Up to this time, 1t had been $79,000,
This wus tho oxtent of the capital stock & long as the com ﬁ
was in exdstence, In fact, the very last reports show tha_g o
corpany naver ogpanded even this mch., September 25, 1851, a
neeting of tho stockholders was held in Guyandotie for the puppese
of incrocsing the capitol atoek to the above amount. It scens
that, in this, ther wvore wnsuccassful, for, on :iugust 12th,
opesrotions were suspended, and the sup:rin{'.endent and ongincer
wers digeharged, as funds woere short.

Some one vhe Yimow the situation ot the Pulls, and the great
damzge thet must inovitobly result to the -orks. 1f left in the
c.ndition thoy were thon in, insisted on having the loek finished
1 :nd the gutes hung,t

e, Rofic wae then zutharized to do this work, upon his

ovn Pesponsibility, the dircelofy sgroeing to "indennify hin,
fron any loss, In ﬁhe:vom: ke shes w» the locik, by disposing
of any prop::-r{y of the company they vay have con'rol of 53 dirgce
Lors vo poy the sive. " Mp, Joffe Tindlshed tho worl: mnd paid of
and discharged the woriie Novembay 1lth, :

Hr. Rolle suya that the Leel: 2nd dam at the mouth of ud
Rivar were hegun in Hov.

Yoz
.....

qu: »r§eReetferIYOcpinil NAR ¥ERR SYeRtoSrab.bRie Rl 98aatig Higpe
plers and dum, lMuch ¢imber plank ete, ‘s ?rel}. as castings fop
the gates were on the:ground ut so far ncthing had been done on
the lock and dam,
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Ahgel Noe 3, ot Dugenderry Dan wasg praciieslly finished by
sugusty, 1, 1851, It was intotended to riise this dim three foob
in evdor €o «llow bo:tg to pass.t
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